QUESTIONS & ANSWERS ADDRESSED ON INDUSTRY DAY

January 21, 2011


(Questions submitted prior to Industry Day)

1. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  The Government specifies page limits associated with The Mission Suitability Volume on page 61 of the Draft RFP. This Offeror’s assumption is that:

· Ten (10) pages are allocated to discussing the Representative Task Orders, as specified within Subfactor A-Technical Approach
· Forty (40) pages are allocated for the rest of the Technical Approach to discuss all of the other sections specified within Subfactor A-Technical Approach described starting on page 67 EXCEPT the Phase-in Plan. The Phase-in Plan has no specific page limit.

· Thirty (30) pages (charts) are allocated to the Oral Management Approach and will discuss all of the sections specified within Subfactor B-Management Approach described starting on page 69 EXCEPT the Total Compensation Plan and Safety and Health Plan. The Total Compensation Plan and Safety and Health Plan have no specific page limit.
· Deviations and Exceptions has no specific page limit.
GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  (bullet 1 and 2) It is the government’s intention to allow up to 50 pages to be submitted in response to the Technical Approach including the RTOs. 
GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  (bullet 3) The government is still evaluating the question and will provide a clarification if required.
GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  (bullet 4) Correct
2. INDUSTRY QUESTION: In the Past Performance section on page 76, the Government specifies that Prime Contractors should provide information on contracts which have a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $6m or larger. This Offeror believes that the Government’s goal is to ensure that prime contractors have sufficient experience in managing contracts comparable to the HITSS contract and that submitted past performance submissions demonstrate that experience, however we do not believe this wording achieves that goal effectively.

First, it is as important, or more important, that a prime contractor have experience with a customer over a period of years to accurately illustrate the quality of the work being performed. Second, the $6m single year size limitation is likely to significantly limit competition due to the 8a size limitations. This will exclude a number of otherwise highly qualified 8a companies from responding that have a very strong management story and applicable experience. The quality of the Offeror’s management qualifications is evaluated elsewhere extensively in the RFP criteria.

We thus recommend the following change to the wording on page 76 which retains the requirement that submitted past performances are of sufficient size and complexity but will not limit competition:

“…with a total contract value of at least $10m over the contract life, where the contract was performed within the last 3 years of the RFP release date.”
GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  Your feedback is noted and we will take these comments into consideration prior to the release of the Final RFP.  In the event that these dollar limitations do change prior to the release of the Final RFP an Amendment will be provided via the NAIS HQ Business Opportunities website.
3. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  DRFP Section B.3 states that maximum amount of supplies and services that may be ordered on the contract is $97 million. This seems to be about half of recent expenditures (i.e., $30-$40 million per year). Has something changed to cause this lower ceiling? What portion of the total contract value is expected to be for core services and what portion is expected for the IDIQ tasks?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  The $97M maximum value applies to the IDIQ portion of the contract. The offeror is expected to propose the estimated cost of the Core portion of the contract.
4. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  DRFP Section F.4 states that the place of performance is at NASA HQs and the contractor’s facility. Will the Government provide an estimate of the proportion of work to be performed at each location? Alternately, will the Government identify the space available to support contractors at NASA HQs?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE: The offeror proposed approach should include a description and the estimate of the work to be performed at the NASA Headquarters location versus off-site. The Government shall provide office, desk and associated infrastructure to house 33 work year equivalents for contractor onsite support (see PWS Section 2.8.1).  The HITSS Bidders Library includes a floor plan with the available space notated.
5. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  Offerors must propose the core services but there seems to be no historical data available to support bid development.  Is there historical data available and will it be provided?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  Today’s presentation includes historical data for several of the PWS areas.  More historical data is included in the Bidder’s Library.
6. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  Are there any current plans to migrate the NASA HQ Data Center support effort to another contract vehicle (e.g., some part of I3P) during the life of the HITSS contract?
GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  The NASA Data Center strategy is under evaluation.  Until that evaluation is concluded it is “business as usual.”
7. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  Provide all labor resources employed under this contract in the last twelve months, by Company Labor Category.  For each labor category, provide the number of full-time equivalents (FTEs), the current average wage rate (unburdened “straight time” rate), and the average seniority level. For each labor category, identify the most recent date that wages were escalated and provide the percentage by which wages were escalated; For each labor category, identify whether the category is “exempt”, “non-exempt”, or “union” as governed under the Services Contract Act; For each labor category, provide a brief position description in sufficient detail to indicate the duties of each category and any minimum  education and experience requirements. Provide the actual non-labor (other direct costs) expenditures for the prior twelve months, delineated by each of the following cost elements: Materials, equipment, travel, supplies, and any other non-labor expenditure (e.g. service centers, training, facilities, etc.); Provide an estimate of the number of FTEs, including associated labor category titles/descriptions, for those personnel currently supporting this contract that are accounted for as indirect.  This may include administrative employees (e.g., accounting or clerical personnel), management employees and/ or technical employees (e.g. computer support personnel); and the information required [in (1) through (6)] above shall be provided for the prime contractor and all significant subcontractors.  Significant subcontractors are those subcontractors that have performed more than $TBD million in work over the life of this contract.

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  The government will update the Bidder’s Library with everything that has already been released for the current contract through the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).   Any additional requests for information must be submitted through the FOIA process.
8. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  We are concerned with the following requirement in section M.5 of the draft RFP: 

“For a prime contractor’s contract reference(s) to be considered at least minimally relevant, it must meet/exceed an average annual cost/fee incurred of at least $6M.”

This requirement negatively impacts many qualified 8a companies planning to bid on this procurement.   A company with a large number of contracts averaging $2M per contract annually provides a solid business base, but would have no relevant references given the above requirement, even if  the contracts are all IT services contracts.  Will the government consider changing this number to $2M, or eliminate this requirement? 

Can the government provide a response to this issue on or before Industry day?   Many of the 8a primes could be forced to not bid due to this requirement.    
GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  This question is representative of several that we have received to-date. Your feedback is noted and we will take these comments into consideration prior to the release of the Final RFP.  In the event that these dollar limitations do change prior to the release of the Final RFP an Amendment will be provided via the NAIS HQ Business Opportunities website.  The government has set an objective to post an update on this question by Friday, January 28th. 
9. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  Section L.19 (page 61) Table - Past Performance Volume (a) Information from the Offeror note *** “Prime and each individual significant subcontractor”:   Are we correct in assuming that the ***note is added to clarify that the 25 pages is inclusive of both the prime and the significant subcontractors versus 25 pages for the prime and 25 pages for significant subcontractors?
GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  Yes you are correct.

10. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  Will the Government allow an  8(a) Joint Venture to be considered for this opportunity.

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE (on Industry Day):  The government will provide a response at later date.
REVISED GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  This requirement is accepted for inclusion in the Small Business Administration’s (SBA) 8(a) Business Development Program.  The competition is restricted to eligible participants under the program and joint ventures entered into by eligible participants that are approved by the SBA. 

11. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  Section L.24 (a) (page 76) Information from the Offeror and M.5 (page 87) fifth paragraph:  The Section L requirement states that the “prime offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $6M that your company has had within the last 3 years of the RFP release date.”  Will the Government consider removing the $6M requirement since it severely restricts competition in an 8(a) environment? 
GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  Please see Government’s Response to question’s two (2) and eight (8).

12. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  As stated in Section M.5, “for a prime contractor’s past performance to be considered minimally relevant, it must meet/exceed an average annual cost/fee incurred of at least $6M.”  In other words, the 8(a) prime must have similar contracts that meet/exceed $30M/5 years or more likely $60M/5 years since most small business set asides have an average of 50% prime participation or small 8(a) companies are in a subcontractor role.  Opportunities for small 8(a) businesses that meet the $25M size standard to have completed/ongoing contracts in excess of $6M per year seems to favor larger small businesses (which may result in a size standard protest) or favors Alaskan Native Corporations or tribally owned organizations that are unrestricted in using past performance references under the rules of normal 8(a) corporations. Will the Government consider removing the $6M requirement since it severely restricts competition in an 8(a) environment? 
GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  Please see Government’s Response to question’s two (2) and eight (8).

13. INDUSTRY QUESTION:  Draft RFP Paragraph L.24 Past Performance states - "Prime Offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $6M that your company has had within the last 3 years of the RFP release date." 
This requirement may be prohibitive for many 8(a) companies to meet this requirement thereby limiting a fair and open competition.  Can the Government eliminate the annual cost/fee incurred of $6M requirement?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:  Please see Government’s Response to question’s two (2) and eight (8).

(Electronically submitted questions from the morning session):

1) Does the government have a budget projection for this series of contracted services?

Government Response:  The government does not release its budget projections.
2) Actual (real) levels of activity and projections of activity levels is crucial for us to provide FF pricing.  How comfortable are you with the activity levels you have to present and do you consider it feasable to allow adjustments for future years if projections are low?
Government Response: The government is still evaluating the question and will provide a clarification if required.
3) Will the CR impact the release date of the final RFP?
Government Response:  We currently do not anticipate the CR impacting the RFP release date.
4) Also will the scope of the RFP be impacted by when the Budget is released?

Government Response:  We currently do not anticipate the budget release date to impact the scope of the RFP release.
5) You mentioned close collaboration with ACES and NICS.  Per RTO 2, is close collaboration with ITAMS at JSC and MITS at MSFC also envisioned.  If so, will Associate Contractor Agreements need to be put in place with those two contracts?
Government Response:  Yes, close collaboration is envisioned.
6) The ability to implement and utilize web-based meeting and engineering collaboration tools appears to be a paramount capability on HITSS.  Would NASA look unfavorably if a key technical SME was proposed who resided and worked at another Center such as JSC or MSFC?
Government Response:  We are results driven and it is the responsibility of the offeror’s approach to propose staffing.
7) What is the minimum number of past performance citations required by the Prime?
Government Response:  There is no minimum number of past performance “citations” required.  However when the offeror does not have a record of a recent past performance then the offeror will receive a neutral rating (as stated in Section M.5 of the RFP).
8) What is the minimum number of Past Performance citations required by an offeror (inclusive of the entire team of Prime and significant Sub)?

Government Response:  There is no minimum number of past performance “citations” required.  However when the offeror does not have a record of a recent past performance then the offeror will receive a neutral rating (as stated in Section M.5 of the RFP).
9) Please publish a complete list and contact information for the HITSS Industry Day attendees and registrants to enable additional teaming discussions.
Government Response:  Yes we will publish a list of the attendees and the companies they represent.
10) Will you publish a list of attendees and possibly identify businesses according to size?  (8a,small, large business)

Government Response:  Yes we will publish a list of the attendees and the companies they represent.  No we will not identify businesses according to size.
11) For 8(a), if an organization is nearing the end of their 8(a) status, which date will be used as the cutoff date (submission date, award date, or contract start date)? Example: if my 8(a) status expires in September 2011, do I qualify to bid as Prime?

Government Response: The government is still evaluating the question and will provide a clarification if required.
12) Will all offerors be invited to ORALS or will there be some down-select?

Government Response: All acceptable proposals will be included in the oral presentation of their management approach.
13) We have not delivered Cost Plus contracts and therefore have not had any rates certified. Will that present any problem?

Government Response: The minimum requirement is for an adequate accounting system as cited in the RFP in Section L.20.
14) Will there be a down select of offers?

Government Response: That will be determined as part of the Source Evaluation Board process.
15) Please further describe the goal/purpose/breadth of the continuous monitoring described on Slide 110.
Government Response:  Additional information about the breadth of current continuous monitoring is located within the bidder’s library.  The goal and purpose is stated in the PWS.
16) Do you anticipate the RTOs to be the same in the final RFP?
Government Response:  We do not anticipate any significant changes to the RTO’s as currently written.
17) Will there be any other requirements for socio-economic outside of 8(a) for this contract. I.e SDVOSB , HUBzone. etc.?
Government Response:  No.
14) For an 8(a) under the $25 million size standard, it would be difficult to cite Past Performances that average $6 million/ year. Will this minimum be changed?

Government Response:  Your feedback is noted and we will take these comments into consideration prior to the release of the Final RFP.  In the event that these dollar limitations do change prior to the release of the Final RFP an Amendment will be provided via the NAIS HQ Business Opportunities website.

15) If a company is certified as an 8(a) at the time (date) of proposal submission, will they still be eligible for an award if they graduate from the 8(a) program before the contract is awarded?

Government Response:  Please refer to Government’s Response in question eleven (11).

18) Regarding the $6M threshold, please provide clarification on this requirement today or give a target date for when the clarification will be made

Government Response:  Please refer to Government’s Response in question fourteen (14).

(Written submitted questions from the morning session)
1) What system is used to route the workflow of IDIQ task requests from initiation through approval?  Is the system to be used a government provided application or is the offeror encouraged/required to bring a system to the contract?

Government Response:  The government does not have a workflow tool/application.

2) Is this a multiple award opportunity?

Government Response:  No only one proposal will be selected for award.
3) What are the teaming/subcontracting guidelines?

Government Response:  We require additional information in order to formulate a response.
4) Are security clearances required and at what level?

Government Response:  Clearance requirements are addressed in Section 8.5 of the PWS.

5) We are an 8a firm. Just to clarify, we cannot support all the tasks on the PWS.  Could we still submit a bid as a Prime?

Government Response:  It is expected that the Prime’s proposal will cover all work under the contract either performing it as the Prime and/or through sub-contracting agreements.

6) To be competitive we highly recommend removing the 6 million dollar requirements.

Government Response:  Your feedback is noted and we will take these comments into consideration prior to the release of the Final RFP.  In the event that these dollar limitations do change prior to the release of the Final RFP an Amendment will be provided via the NAIS HQ Business Opportunities website.

7) Please clarify what level of security clearance is required for this contract.

Government Response:  Clearance requirements are addressed in Section 8.5 of the PWS.  

8) What is the ceiling value of the contract?
Government Response:  There is a minimum/maximum ordering value that only applies to the IDIQ portion of the Contract.  The minimum ordering value is $10K and the maximum ordering value is $97M.  The offeror is expected to propose the estimated cost of the Core portion of the contract.

9) Will all of the information presented today be available via your website or fbo?

Government Response:  Yes
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